Form 10-300 (July 1969)

Z 0

 \supset α

> S Z

ш ш S

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

PH0011444			
STATE:			
COUNTY:			
FOR NPS USE ONL	Y		
ENTRY NUMBER	DATE		
AUA 1/	1073		

· ·		ENTRY NUMBER DATE		
(Type all entries - complete applicable sections)		AUG	1 4 1973	
I. NAME				
COMMON:				
Commandant's Office, Washington 1	Navy Yard			
AND/OR HISTORIC:				
Building #1; Quarters J				
2. LOCATION				
STREET AND NUMBER:				
Montgomery Square, south terminus	s of Dalhgren Ave	nue, Washington	Navy Yard	
CITY OR TOWN:	,	_	-	
Washington(Congressman Walter E.		ct of Columbia)		
STATE	CODE COUNTY:		COD	E
District of Columbia	11 Distric	t of Columbia	00:	1
3. CLASSIFICATION				
CATEGORY	VNERSHIP	STATUS	ACCESSIBLE	
(Check One)			TO THE PUBLI	C
☐ District 🛣 Building 🖾 Public P	Public Acquisition:	🔀 Occupied	Yes:	
Site Structure Private	☐ In Process	Unoccupied	X Restricted	
☐ Object ☐ Both	 Being Considered 	Preservation work	Unrestricted	'
,		in progress	□ No	İ
PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)			t	
Agricultural Government	Park	Transportation	Comments	
	Private Residence	Other (Specify)		
	Religious _	Graner (opecity)		_
	Scientific			_
4. OWNER OF PROPERTY	-			
OWNER'S NAME:				S S
United States of America (Jurisdi	iction IIS Name	2 4	5 >>	STAT
STREET AND NUMBER:	totion, o.b. navy	/ / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / /	- (a)	. iii
		10/ 40. (C)		
CITY OR TOWN:	STATE	- A P	CODE	1 1
		1 5.42 L		
5. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION		1-1 40,01	か /元/	
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC:			- 	<u>0</u>
Recorder of Deeds		**************************************	~6)	0 C Z
STREET AND NUMBER:		WITTON		1
6th and D Streets, N.W.				
CITY OR TOWN:	STATE		CODE	
Washington	Dist	rict of Columbia	a 11	
6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS				
TITLE OF SURVEY: Proposed D.C. Additi	TITLE OF SURVEY: Proposed D.C. Additions to the National Register of Historic			
Properties Recommended by the Joi	int Committee on	Landmarks		E Z
DATE OF SURVEY: March 7, 1968	🔀 Federal 🗌 State	County] Local	Y NCW BE N
	DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:			C Z
National Capital Planning Commission			BER	
STREET AND NUMBER:				ñ
1325 G Street, N.W.		•		
CITY OR TOWN:	STATE:		CODE	-
Washington	Dist	rict of Columbia	a 11	DAT
				121

SEIVED A	£ .					
740 RESCRIPTION TO						
MATE 1072			(Check One)			
RECONALS HI]Excellent 🗓 🤆	Good 🗌 Fair	Deteriorated	Ruins	Unexposed	
CASHEN LON COL	(Check One)			(Check One)		
3L WY	★ Altered	Unaltered		Moved	🔀 Original Site	

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Commandant's Office, an 1837-38 building with bellcast hipped roof, occupies an important location at the Washington Naval Yard. This 2-story brick building surrounded by 2-story frame porches is the visual terminus of Dahlgren Avenue, the Yard's major axis. There is an unobstructed view of the building's north facade from the Main Gate and an unobstructed view of its south facade from the Anacostia River. The setting and appearance of this building have been greatly altered but not to such an extent that its early 19th century scale and massing have been obscured.

The freestanding building is located about 15 feet east of Building 76. It forms part of the south enclosure of Montgomery Square, an open space surrounded largely by two and three story, functional, brick industrial buildings. The square in the 19th century had grass and trees, but is now covered with asphalt. South of the Commandant's Office was Trophy Park, an area with grass, trees, and a circular arrangement of cannons. When this park was eliminated between 1941 and 1947, the area was covered with asphalt. Southwest of the Commandant's Office is a fenced children's play area.

The building has been significantly altered since its completion in 1838 but drawings, photographs, and inspection permit a reasonably accurate description of the original design. The rectangular, two-story building with high foundation measured approximately 49 feet (5 bays) on the north and south sides and 44 feet (4 bays) on the east and west. The red brick walls were laid in Flemish bond and around their entire perimeter was a two-story frame porch. Covering the main block and porch was a low, bellcast hipped roof broken on the east and west slopes by interior chimneys. Terminating the roof was a deck surrounded by a balustrade, probably with heavy turned balusters. The porch had either plain piers or Doric columns and had railings with plain balusters. The south facade had 6 piers or columns. There was a wide cornice surmounted by a parapet.

The facades were evenly divided into bays. Inspection reveals that openings had brick jack arches; the first story had 9/9-light windows, and the second had 6/6-light windows. Doorways opening onto the porch on the first and second stories had three light transoms and paneled reveals. Drawings show that the building had a central hall running north-south with two rooms at each side. In the hall was a straight stair with three flights going to the attic. In the attic was a stair to the deck on the roof.

Drawings dated August 1873 suggest that the porch's columns or piers and the cornice were probably replaced in 1873. A photograph of the building in the late 19th century shows a two-story porch with paired columns and heavy turned railing. Each column stands on a paneled pedestal the height of the railing. On the first story are Doric columns and on the second are Ionic. At the basement level pairs of columns and corner groupings of three columns are supported on brick plinths. The east and west facades had seven pairs of columns and the north and south had eight pairs. At the south was a central entrance stair with heavy railing.

In 1895-96 the porch was replaced again. This porch which has largely been enclosed is present today. The brick plinths and paired column arrangement of 1873 were retained and probably the 1873 dentiled cornice. The 1895-96 porch has square columns with chamfered corners above the railing. The railing had jigsaw cutouts. At the north a projecting, one-story entrance porch has a gable roof with a low pediment end supported by square columns on paneled pedestals. At the center of the south facade is a projecting two-story porch with stairs. (Continued on Form 10-300a)

SIGNIFICANCE		
PERIOD (Check One or More as Ap	propriate)	
Pre-Columbian	☐ 16th Century	18th Century 20th Century
☐ 15th Century	17th Century	[X] 19th Century
SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable	and Known) Constructe	ed 1837-38
AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check	One or More as Appropriate)	1411/5
Abor iginal	☐ Education [Political Planning
☐ Prehistoric	Engineering [Religion/Phi-
Historic	☐ Industry	losoph 40
☐ Agriculture	Invention [Science 1
X Architecture	☐ Landscape [Sculpture DAY
☐ Art	Architecture	Social/Human- CG/O/
Commerce	Literature	itarian (3)
Communications	X Military	Theater Theater
Conservation	Music	Transportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the Commandant's Office at the Washington Navy Yard, also known as Building #1 and Quarters J, a Category II Landmark of importance which contributes significantly to the cultural heritage and visual beauty of the District of Columbia. Since its construction in 1837-1838, this two-story brick building surrounded by a two-story frame porch, has been the terminus of Dahlgren Avenue, the installation's main axis. As such, it is a major visual focal point of the Yard. It has played a vital, historical role in the Yard's overall design and for many years was its administrative center, serving as the Commandant's office.

The Commandant's Office was constructed in 1837 and 1838, not 1848 as has been previously claimed. Although the building is listed on the Yard's nineteenth century maps as the Commandant's Office, it was constructed not solely for the Commandant's use, but for use as office space by all of the Yard's officers.

Due in part to the more comprehensive use of this building than the term Commandant's Office implies, the search for this structure's construction date has been somewhat complex. The building is listed as a proposed improvement in an 1828 plan for the Yard, and is first shown in an 1842 map; thus, it must have been constructed in this period. However, the annual reports of the Secretary of Navy for those years include no proposal for the construction of a Commandant's Office (although there is no itemized list of proposed improvements for the years 1829 and 1830). Proposed improvements, however, do include \$12,500 in 1837 and \$2,000 in 1838 for a "Building for officers."

George Watterston's description of the Washington Navy Yard in his 1842 copyrighted "New Guide to Washington" indicates that this "Building for officers" was the Commandant's Office - "A neat and beautiful building of brick, two-stories high, with verandahs running all around it, has lately been erected as offices, for the officers and others doing business in this establishment." The contract for this building's construction is not included in the National Archives' collection of navy yard contracts, but a review of the correspondence of the Washington Navy Yard's Commandant for 1837 and 1838 may provide additional information on the building.

The Commandant's Office was an essential addition to the Yard's overall design. In the original plan, an 1804 design by Benjamin Latrobe, Washington's important Eight Street Axis (East) was given a prominent role by the construction of the Yard's Main Gate at the point at which the street penetrated the Yard's northern border. The Yard's main avenue (now Dahlgren Avenue) is a continuation of this street, and its line was defined by the (Continued on Form 10-300a)

102000		5555-557	<i>a.</i>	
9.	MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES			
	Crane and Garwic Associates, Inc. in	1 8	association with Robert L. Playnick,	
	Development Plan - Washington Navy Yard,			
	Technical Report #1 - Historic Deve			
			Rockets, A History of the Washington	
1			. Annapolis, Md. U.S. Naval Institute.	
j	1949.		, sample of the	
İ	Secretary of Navy. Annual Reports.			
ļ		ıl i	ic Works. "Antique Map Collection" and	
	"Quarters J" Plans Drawer.		to norms, imerque hap correction and	
ļ	National Capital Planning Commission	,	Landmarks Files	
	GEOGRAPHICAL DATA	•	Handing Files.	
	LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES	7	LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES	
- 1	DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY		DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY	
	CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE	\dashv	R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES	
ŀ		\dashv	LATITUDE LONGITUDE	
	Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Second	is [Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds	
	NE ° , " ° ,	,	38 ° 52 ′ 23 ° 76 ° 59′ 43 ″	
	SE O , " O ,	,		
	35		·	
Ì	SW 9 , 1 0 , 1 APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY: I	es	ss than one acre.	
- 1-	LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OV			
-	STATE: COD		COUNTY	
	•		1 Pros	
-	STATE: COL	DE	COUNTY: CODE	
.		_	- CAMP OF THE PROPERTY OF THE	
ŀ	STATE: COL	DE.	COUNTY: NA DO CODE	
			COUNTY: NATIONAS CODE	
-				
l	STATE:) E	COUNTY: CODE	
			1 Color of the col	
	FORM PREPARED BY			
	NAME AND TITLE: Leonard Gerson, Urban Hi		•	
]-	T. Robins Brown, Archite	2C t	tural Historian	
			Tonu on 17 1072	
	National Capital Planning Commission	1	January 17, 1973	
H	1325 G Street, N.W.		STATE CODE	
ļ			District of Columbia 11	
100	Washington STATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFICATION		NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION	
12	31 ATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFICATION		NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION	
			·	
1	As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-			
	tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law	w	I hereby certify that this property is included in the	
l	89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusio	n	National Register.	
	in the National Register and certify that it has been		Q 1 1 7	
1	evaluated according to the criteria and procedures s	et	(First of the Italian	
	forth by the National Park Service. The recommende	ed	- Old Ne Man William	
	level of significance of this nomination is:		Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation	
	National State X Local			
	Λ		\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \	
	y h		Date	
	Name \ (Imes b) Sunh		()	
- 1	1	_	ATTEST:	
	//			
	Title Assistant to the Mayor for		Mark Your Vant	
	Housing Programs	_	- Julian Julian	
			Keeper of The National Register	
	_{Date} MAR 3 0 1973		Date J J 3	
- 1				

Fòrm-10-300a (July 1969)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

STATE	
COUNTY	
FOR NPS USE ONL	Υ
ENTRY NUMBER	DATE
6110	1 4 1973
200	

(Continuation Sheet)

(Number all entries)

7. Description - Commandant's Office

Exterior modifications since 1895 include the removal of the chimneys in 1948. Most of the porch has been enclosed by weatherboarding. Openings in the enclosed sections are irregularly placed and the square columns are partially visible. At present the only sections of the brick building visible are the east side of the first story north facade which has a central doorway separated from a doorway to the east by a 9/9-light window, the second story of the north facade which has four 6/6-light windows and a central doorway with French doors, the second story of the east facade which has doorways at the north and south separated by two 6/6-light windows, and the two east bays of the second story of the south facade with two 6/6-light windows. It is possible that window sash and door trim are original. The doors are not.

The floor plan has been greatly changed since the building was converted into apartments so that there is little visual evidence of the original arrangement. Interior trim dates from the twentieth century, except the newel of the stair which probably has a mid-19th century date.

8. Significance - Commandant's Office

erection of the Tripoli Monument in 1808 under the supervision of Latrobe. The removal of the Monument to the Capitol Grounds in 1831 would have left a major gap in the Yard's design if not for the construction of the Commandant's Office. As is indicated in the 1828 improvement plan, the proposed building was intended to both define and provide a terminus for Dahlgren Avenue.

The visual impact of the Commandant's Office was strengthened by the creation of Trophy Park in its front yard on the south side of the building. The park "consisted of a semi-circle of captured Naval cannons graduated from the center by size with other guns and stacks of round shot placed between this semi-circle and the office."

This park, like the office, first appears on the 1842 map of the Yard, but was eliminated some time between 1941 and 1947.

Old plans of the Yard indicate that this building has served as the office of the Commandant for most of its existence. However, in 1861, John Dahlgren, the Yard's most illustrious figure, ate and slept in a room in the building, as the Commandant's House was occupied by officers of the 71st Regiment. It is listed on a 1947 plan of the Yard as a post office and communication's center. In 1948 it was remodeled for use as living quarters, a role it continues to serve.

In the Washington Navy Yard 1966 Master Plan it is proposed that the Commandant's Office become a part of the Yard museum complex. It is to be relocated about 100 feet to the south to allow for the extension of 0 Street, 5 but will remain the visual terminus of Dahlgren Avenue.

